
Page 1 of 1 

 
AGENDA FOR REGULAR MEETING 

VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK 
PLAN COMMISSION 

 February 21, 2019 – 7:00 P.M. 
Council Chambers 

Village Hall – 16250 S. Oak Park Avenue 
 

Regular Meeting Called to Order 
Pledge of Allegiance 
Roll Call Taken 
Communications 
Approval of Minutes: Minutes of the February 7, 2019 Regular Meeting 
  
 
Item #1 PUBLIC HEARING: CTF ILLINIOS, 6800-6820 CENTENNITAL DR –  

SPECIAL USE FOR SUBSTANTIAL DEVIATION FROM PUD 
 

 Consider recommending that the Village Board grant a Special Use for a substantial 
deviation from the Brementowne Mall Planned Unit Development at 6800-6820 
Centennial Drive in the B-2 PD (Community Shopping, Brementowne Mall PUD) zoning 
district to permit exterior storage of buses exceeding 8,000 lbs. in the front yard. 

 
Item #2  PUBLIC HEARING:  ANYTIME FITNESS, 17823 80TH AVE. – SPECIAL USE 
   

Consider recommending that the Village Board grant the Petitioner, Derek Tucker of 
Anytime Fitness a Special Use for an Indoor Recreation use (fitness/health center) greater 
than 3,500 square feet in size at 17823 80th Avenue in the B-1 (Neighborhood Shopping) 
zoning district. 

Item #3 PUBLIC HEARING :  SHORT TERM RENTAL – TEXT AMENDMENT 
 

Consider a proposed text amendment to the Tinley Park Zoning Ordinance. Section II.B 
(Definitions) and Section V.B. (Schedule of Regulations) for short-term rental uses. The 
purpose of this amendment is to add definitions and to modify the schedule of use 
regulations to permit short-term rentals in residential zoning districts as an accessory use 
and prohibit them in non-residential zoning districts. The Petitioner is the Village of 
Tinley Park. 

 
 

Good of the Order 
Receive Comments from the Public 
Adjourn Meeting 



 Minutes of the Village of Tinley Park Plan Commission  
                         February 7, 2019           

Page 1 of 11 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE  
PLAN COMMISSION, VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK, 
COOK AND WILL COUNTIES, ILLINOIS 

 
February 7, 2019 
 
 

 
The Regular Meeting of the Plan Commission was held in the Council Chambers of Village Hall on February 7, 2019 at 
7:00 p.m. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Plan Commissioners:  Ken Shaw, Chairman 

Tim Stanton 
Eduardo Mani 

    Stephen Vick 
Chuck Augustyniak 

 
Absent Plan Commissioner(s):   Garrett Gray 

Angela Gatto 
Lucas Engel 
MaryAnn Aitchison 

 
Village Officials and Staff: Kimberly Clarke, Planning Manager 
    Barbara Bennett, Commission Secretary  
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
PLAN COMMISSION CHAIRMAN SHAW called to order the Regular Meeting of the Plan Commission for February 7, 
2019 at 7:00 p.m. 
  
COMMUNICATIONS 
 
None at this time 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Minutes of the January 3, 2019 Regular Meeting of the Plan Commission were presented for approval.  A Motion was 
made by COMMISSIONER AUGUSTYNIAK, seconded by COMMISSIONER STANTON, to approve the Minutes as 
presented.  The Motion was approved by voice call.  CHAIRMAN SHAW declared the Motion approved as presented.  
 
 

 

 



 Minutes of the Village of Tinley Park Plan Commission  
                         February 7, 2019           

Page 2 of 11 

TO:   VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

FROM:  VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK PLAN COMMISSION 
 
SUBJECT:  MINUTES OF THE FEBRUARY 7, 2019 REGULAR MEETING 
 
Item #1 PLAT APPROVAL: PETER BOBBER, 9055 & 9101 W. 175TH ST. –  

PLAT OF RESUBDIVISION 
 
Consider recommending that the Village Board grant the Petitioner, Peter Bobber, a final Plat of 
Resubdivision for the properties located at 9055 and 9101 W. 175th Street in the R-3 (Single-
family Residential) zoning district. The plat would transfer an approximately 8,134 square foot 
portion of the rear yard from the 9101 W. 175th Street property and consolidate it with the 
neighboring lot addressed 9055 W 175th Street. 

  
 
Present were the following: 
 
Plan Commissioners:  Ken Shaw, Chairman 

Tim Stanton 
Eduardo Mani 

    Stephen Vick 
Chuck Augustyniak 

 
Absent Plan Commissioner(s):   Garrett Gray 

Angela Gatto 
Lucas Engel 
MaryAnn Aitchison 

 
Village Officials and Staff: Kimberly Clarke, Planning Manager 
    Barbara Bennett, Commission Secretary  
 
Guest(s): Peter Bobber 
 
 
Kimberly Clarke, Planning Manager gave a presentation as noted in the Staff Report. The Petitioner, Peter Bobber, is 
requesting approval of a Final Plat of Subdivision for the properties located at 9055 and 9101 W. 175th Street in the R-3 
(Single-family Residential) zoning district.  The plat would transfer an approximately 8,134 square foot portion of the rear 
yard from the 9101 W. 175th Street property and consolidate it with the neighboring lot address 9055 W. 175th Street. 
 
The Plat approval will formally transfer a portion of property from one lot to an adjacent lot.  The sale of the property 
being transferred was completed in 2016. However, a Plat of Subdivision was never properly approved by the Village or 
recorded, so the property was never formally transferred to Mr. Bobber’s lot.  Ms. Clarke displayed an image of the 
property with the area in red showing the property that will be transferred.  This will allow the owner to erect a detached 
garage following the approval and recording of the new Plat of Subdivision.  The new owners (Hanes) have supplied a 
letter that they were aware of the sale and have agreed to sign the Plat of Subdivision.   
 
The Zoning is R-3 Single-family Residential surrounded on the west, east and South by R-3 PD (Single-family 
Residential, Timber’s Edge PUD).  The lots to the north across 175th Street are zoned R-2 (Single-family Residential). 
 



 Minutes of the Village of Tinley Park Plan Commission  
                         February 7, 2019           

Page 3 of 11 

Ms. Clarke displayed an image of the new Plat of Subdivision.  This complies with the Plat Act and will be officially 
recorded. 
 
CHAIRMAN SHAW asked for questions or concerns from the Commissioners. 
 
COMMISSIONER AUGUSTYNIAK noted as long as this is all in compliance and agreed to by both parties, there would 
be no reason to stand in the way.   
 
CHAIRMAN SHAW agreed that it was all very straight forward.  He inquired about the separate PIN numbers.  Ms. 
Clarke responded the assessor would determine that it should be one PIN number following the recording of Plat. 
 
CHAIRMAN SHAW asked the Petitioner if he had anything to add.  Mr. Bobber noted there was nothing to add.   
 
CHAIRMAN SHAW asked for a Motion.   
 
A Motion was made by COMMISSIONER AUGUSTYNIAK, seconded by COMMISSIONER VICK to recommend that 
the Village Board grant approval for a Final Plat of Subdivision to the Petitioner, Peter Bobber, for the Bobber 
Resubdivision that would transfer approximately 8,134 square foot of rear yard property from the property located at 9101 
W. 175th Street (Hanes) to the neighboring property at 9055 W. 175th Street (Bobber) in the R-3 (Single-Family 
Residential) zoning district.  
 
 
AYES:  STANTON, MANI, AUGUSTYNIAK, VICK and CHAIRMAN SHAW. 
 
NAYS:  NONE 
 
CHARIMAN SHAW declared the Motion unanimously approved.   
 
Ms. Clarke noted this will go before the Village Board on February 19.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 Minutes of the Village of Tinley Park Plan Commission  
                         February 7, 2019           

Page 4 of 11 

TO:   VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 
FROM:  VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK PLAN COMMISSION 
 
SUBJECT:  MINUTES OF THE FEBRUARY 7, 2019 REGULAR MEETING 
 
Item #2  WORKSHOP: CTF ILLINIOS, 6800-6820 CENTENNITAL DR –  

SPECIAL USE FOR SUBSTANTIAL DEVIATION FROM PUD 
 

 Consider recommending that the Village Board grant a Special Use for a substantial deviation 
from the Brementowne Mall Planned Unit Development at 6800-6820 Centennial Drive in the B-
2 PD (Community Shopping, Brementowne Mall PUD) zoning district to permit exterior storage 
of vehicles and buses in the front yard. 

 
Present were the following: 
 
Plan Commissioners:  Ken Shaw, Chairman 

Tim Stanton 
Eduardo Mani 

    Stephen Vick 
Chuck Augustyniak 

 
Absent Plan Commissioner(s):   Garrett Gray 

Angela Gatto 
Lucas Engel 
MaryAnn Aitchison 

 
Village Officials and Staff: Kimberly Clarke, Planning Manager 
    Barbara Bennett, Commission Secretary  
 
Guest(s): Mary Pat Ambrosino 
 
Kimberly Clarke, Planning Manager gave a presentation as noted in the Staff Report. The Petitioner, CTF Illinois, is 
seeking approval of a Special Use Permit for a Substantial Deviation from the Brementowne Mall Planned Unit 
Development (PUD) that would allow for exterior storage of buses exceeding 8,000 lbs. in vehicle weight in the front yard 
at the properties located at 6800-6820 Centennial Drive in the B-2 PD (Community Shopping, Brementowne PUD) 
zoning district. 
 
CF Illinois is a not-for-profit organization that helps to assist people with developmental disabilities and their families.  
They provide educational, training, vocational and other opportunities that allow people with developmental disabilities to 
grow and become more independent.  Their current location is on Prosperi Drive and will be relocating their programs to 
this new location.  To assist in this mission, they often use vans and 12-15 person buses to transport the students.  These 
buses and vans are typically kept on-site. 
 
Open storage is prohibited in all of the business districts including the storage of vehicles over 8,000 pounds.  The vans do 
not exceed this limit however the CTF buses exceed this weight limit.  In addition, open storage with no screening is not 
permitted in front or corner side yards.  As part of a PUD there are opportunities for more flexibility when considering 
exceptions to the code:  The request has been reviewed by staff in the context of the approved PUD.   
 
Ms. Clarke displayed an image of the site which is an attractive office complex that has traditionally been utilized as 
office space for medical and service uses.  The site includes two buildings that total a little over 20,000 square feet.  CTF 



 Minutes of the Village of Tinley Park Plan Commission  
                         February 7, 2019           

Page 5 of 11 

currently operates at a 40,000 square feet space.   CTF is purchasing the buildings and will be relocating the entire 
capacity to this site.  There is ample parking based on the number of employees and operations at this site.   
 
The zoning is B-2 PD (Community Shopping, Brementowne Mall PUD).  The properties to the north (Kindercare) and 
west (Medical Office) are located in the same B-2 PD.  To the south is Brementowne Manor which is an assisted living 
development zoned R7 PD (Medium-density residential, Brementown Manor PUD).  To the east is Bremen Woods which 
is unincorporated land owned by Cook County Forest Preserve District.   
 
Ms. Clarke displayed images of the buses and vans that will be used.  Only the buses exceed the weight limit.  There 
should be discussion as to where they will keep the buses on the property.  Staff recommends that the vehicles would be 
located on the southwest side of the property where it is least visible from Oak Park Avenue and separated from the rest of 
the parking field. The organization’s use is not an issue, the main thing being reviewed is the location of the buses being 
stored outside. Staff has discussed increasing some of the landscaping on the west side of the property in order to screen 
the vehicles. Staff does not feel this will detract from the area. There are 86 parking stalls currently.   
 
Ms. Clarke identified the following open items for discussion at the workshop: 
 

1. Discuss the Special Use Permit for a Substantial Deviation from the PUD to permit open storage of vehicles over 
8,000 lbs.  

2. Discuss different potential parking locations for 12-15 person buses and vans. 
3. Discuss any potential screening options and adequacy of previously approved Landscape Plan. 
4. Discuss open storage of vehicles in the front yard as an exception to the PUD. 
5. Discuss proposed parking supply and reduction in available spaces from 86 to 74 due to vehicle storage. 

 
COMMISSIONER AUGUSTYNIAK inquired as to how many vehicles there would be and what the weight of the 
vehicles are.   Ms. Clarke responded 4 vans and 4 shuttles (buses).  Ms. Ambrosino, Petitioner, replied the buses are 
14,000 vs. 8,000 on the vans.  There is one 15-passenger bus and the rest are 12-passenger buses. 
 
CHAIRMAN SHAW asked for questions or comments from the Commissioners. 
 
COMMISSIONER STANTON inquired about the hours of operation and when the buses would be running.  Ms. 
Ambrosino replied the start time is 8:00 and the end time is 3:00.  There would also be buses coming to the parking lot 
delivering students but they do not stay. Staff will arrive between 6:30-7:00 a.m.   Buses will arrive for pick up at 
approximately 2:30 p.m. and return to park at approximately 4:00 – 4:30 p.m.  There would be approximately 80 
individuals with 30-40 employees.   
 
CHAIRMAN SHAW inquired if the spaces would be dedicated for shuttle parking only.  He also inquired about the 
landscaping screening in open item #3.  Ms. Ambrosino replied that they would be dedicated spaces with wider striping.  
Ms. Clarke noted the potential to increase landscaping could be addressed in the Spring/Summer. 
 
CHAIRMAN SHAW inquired about the other occupancy in the building.  Ms. Ambrosino replied Edward Jones and 
DuPage Medical are in the 6820 building.  The intention is to occupy the entire space.   
 
COMMISSIONER VICK noted there could be issues with constantly parking the buses on the pavement.  This could 
cause divots in the pavement.  Ms. Clarke noted that would be handled in the future by Property Maintenance.   
 
Ms. Clarke noted at the Public Hearing photos will be presented to show how the parking would look from the adjacent 
properties.   
 
The Public Hearing will be on February 21, 2019.   
 



 Minutes of the Village of Tinley Park Plan Commission  
                         February 7, 2019           

Page 6 of 11 

 
TO:   VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 
FROM:  VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK PLAN COMMISSION 
 
SUBJECT:  MINUTES OF THE FEBRUARY 7, 2019 REGULAR MEETING 
  
Item #3  WORKSHOP:  ANYTIME FITNESS, 17823 80TH AVE. – SPECIAL USE 
   

Consider recommending that the Village Board grant the Petitioner, Derek Tucker of Anytime 
Fitness a Special Use for an Indoor Recreation use (fitness/health center) greater than 3,500 
square feet in size at 17823 80th Avenue in the B-1 (Neighborhood Shopping) zoning district. 

Present were the following: 
 
Plan Commissioners:  Ken Shaw, Chairman 

Tim Stanton 
Eduardo Mani 

    Stephen Vick 
Chuck Augustyniak 

 
Absent Plan Commissioner(s):   Garrett Gray 

Angela Gatto 
Lucas Engel 
MaryAnn Aitchison 

 
Village Officials and Staff: Kimberly Clarke, Planning Manager 
    Barbara Bennett, Commission Secretary  
 
Guest(s): Derek Tucker 
 
 
Kimberly Clarke, Planning Manager gave a presentation as noted in the Staff Report.  The Petitioner, Derek Tucker of 
Anytime Fitness is seeking a Special Use Permit for a Fitness Center (Commercial Indoor Recreation) location that is 
greater than 3,500 square feet in floor area which is triggering the Special Use Requirement. The Anytime Fitness location 
would be located at 17823 80th Avenue in the Junction at 80th Avenue Shopping Center in the B-1 (Neighborhood 
Shopping) Zoning District.  The proposed Special Use Permit will allow the previous Sanfrantello’s Pizza & Banquet 
space to be converted to a fitness and health club.   
 
Anytime Fitness is a chain of fitness centers that focus on availability to members 24 hours a day, 365 days a year.  There 
are over 2,700 locations in the United States including nearby locations in Oak Forest, Frankfort, and Orland Park.  This 
location will be approximately 6,000 square feet in size. 
 
The primary concern with the fitness center and other commercial indoor recreational use is a potential for high levels of 
traffic and parking due to heavy peak times and quick customer turnover (less than 1 hour), particularly in locations with 
multiple commercial tenants.  There can be issues with adequate parking.   
 
Ms. Clarke displayed an image of the center.  The location is in close proximity to the Metra train station, which will give 
an opportunity for people to come in before or after work.   
 



 Minutes of the Village of Tinley Park Plan Commission  
                         February 7, 2019           

Page 7 of 11 

The zoning is B-1 with single-family residential surrounding it.  The main discussion point is parking.  The Applicant has 
provided parking information in the packet from their other locations.  There will not be many employees at any time as 
the client uses a swipe key to enter the fitness center and employees may not be present.  The center has approximately 
157 spaces which does not include the corner piece where the bank is located.  There is also parking in the rear where 
employees can park.  Anytime Fitness will be allocated 20 parking spaces.  Staff does not see that there will be a parking 
issue.   
 
Ms. Clarke identified the following open items for discussion at the workshop: 
 

1. Discuss Petitioner’s request for a Special Use Permit for a 6,008 square foot fitness/health club (Commercial 
Indoor Recreation). 

2. Supply proposed signage information. If no signage is proposed, all signs will need to conform to the existing 
Zoning Code requirements 

3. Review and discuss parking supply and demand as indicated in the parking analysis. 
 
CHAIRMAN SHAW asked for questions or concerns from the Commissioners. 
 
COMMISSIONER AUGUSTYNIAK noted he lives directly behind this center and he is very familiar with the center.    
Parking has never been an issue. The other tenants in the area have different peak hours than the fitness center. 
 
Derek Tucker, Petitioner noted the peak time is between 5:00 -7:00 a.m. and 5:30 – 6:00 p.m. with an average stay of 
about 30-40 minutes.  The radius when a territory is purchased is less than 2 miles.  We try to locate in neighborhood 
centers as most of the members live in the neighborhood.  The average club size is approximately 800 members.  Only 
about 15% use the gym regularly.   
 
CHAIRMAN SHAW inquired about staffing.  Mr. Tucker replied most centers have 2-4 employees, a manager, trainers, 
and a maintenance person.  From 10:00 a.m. -7:00 p.m. Monday – Thursday the center is staffed. In addition, trainers 
usually come in at about 5:00 a.m.  From 9:00 p.m.-5:00 a.m. there generally is no staff.  There are 5 security systems, 
with cameras everywhere.  The security company is called CroVision.  The members have a key fob.  During staff hours a 
guest door is open with a tailgate system.  They are notified if someone enters the center without a key fob.  Inside the 
gym there is an AED Machine and necklaces for cardiac patients or people that are there late at night and want more 
comfort.  If you press the button it goes right to the Police Station.  There is also a phone on the wall and a panic button 
that is hard wired to the Police Department.  The members pay $40.00 per month and the center attracts an adult 
population.   
 
COMMISSIONER STANTON inquired if there were any other 24-hour businesses in the area.  Ms. Clarke replied she 
would check on that.   
 
Ms. Clarke noted the main concern was the parking.  The Petitioner will provide signage information.   
 
 
The Public Hearing will be on February 21, 2019.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 Minutes of the Village of Tinley Park Plan Commission  
                         February 7, 2019           

Page 8 of 11 

TO:   VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 
FROM:  VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK PLAN COMMISSION 
 
SUBJECT:  MINUTES OF THE FEBRUARY 7, 2019 REGULAR MEETING 
  
Item #4  WORKSHOP:  SHORT TERM RENTAL – TEXT AMENDMENT 
 

Consider a proposed text amendment to the Tinley Park Zoning Ordinance. Section II.B 
(Definitions) and Section V.B. (Schedule of Regulations) for short-term rental uses. The purpose 
of this amendment is to add definitions and to modify the schedule of use regulations to permit 
short-term rentals in residential zoning districts and prohibit them in non-residential zoning 
districts. The Petitioner is the Village of Tinley Park. 

 
 
Present were the following: 
 
Plan Commissioners:  Ken Shaw, Chairman 

Tim Stanton 
Eduardo Mani 

    Stephen Vick 
Chuck Augustyniak 

 
Absent Plan Commissioner(s):   Garrett Gray 

Angela Gatto 
Lucas Engel 
MaryAnn Aitchison 

 
Village Officials and Staff: Kimberly Clarke, Planning Manager 
    Barbara Bennett, Commission Secretary  
 
Guest(s): None 
 
 
Ms. Clarke noted staff has been researching how municipalities can regulate short-term rentals.  There was a recent issue 
in the Village that raised the need to discuss this topic.  The discussion was brought to the Community Development 
Committee where staff discussed were several ways suggested to regulate short-term rental.  From the research, there are 
only around seven confirmed short term rentals in the community.  The Community Development Committee 
recommended requiring short-term rentals to be licensed in the Village. Before that can be adopted, staff recommended 
that the zoning code also be amended to include short-term rentals.  At a minimum, short term rental should be defined 
and be differentiated from a bed and breakfast.  The code should be made clearer.   
 
Currently, the only permitted use in the Zoning Ordinance similar to Short Term Rentals is “Bed and Breakfast which is 
only permitted in the B-3 Zoning District. 
 

BED AND BREAKFAST: A Bed and Breakfast facility is a transient lodging establishment, generally in a single 
Family dwelling or detached guesthouses, primarily engaged in providing overnight or otherwise temporary 
lodging for the general public and may provide meals for compensation. 

 
 



 Minutes of the Village of Tinley Park Plan Commission  
                         February 7, 2019           

Page 9 of 11 

In order to differentiate STR from a Bed and Breakfast, Staff recommends the following definition be added to Section 
II.B (Definitions): 

 
SHORT-TERM RENTAL: A dwelling unit that is used as a primary residence by owners or renters, or portion of 
such a unit, that is rented for less than 30 days at a time, with the exception of dwelling units owned by the federal 
government, the state, or any of their agencies or political subdivisions and facilities licensed by the state as 
health care facilities 

 
The Community Development Committee directed staff to limit STR to owner-occupied dwelling units. Therefore, to be 
considered a STR, a dwelling unit or portion of a dwelling unit, must be occupied by the owner. For example, a single-
family homeowner who rents out a spare bedroom or other facilities within his/her own house meets the definition 
however the short term rental of an apartment by someone who does not live in it full-time will not fit the definition. The 
30-day limit is intended to exclude relatively long-term rent contracts. For example, if someone rents out a second home 
to a businessman who will be working in the area for a year, that would not be considered a STR. 
 
Staff recommendation is that short term rentals would be permitted in the residential districts.  If the short term rental was 
permitted in residential districts, a distance requirement could be considered.  Some communities have raised concerns 
about multi-family and the number of short-term rental permitted.  If the Village is going to allow short term rental in 
multi-family districts the zoning code could limit the number of them by requiring a maximum percentage of the building 
that could be rented for short term rental.  With any regulations, there is always going to be a challenge with enforcement.  
However, research has shown that banning short-term rental costs more to enforce and it is proven to not stop people from 
renting their homes.  
 
Staff has researched regulatory best practices for STRs and provide the following recommendations for regulating STR 
property: 
 

• Only allow permanent residents to operate STRs and disallow rentals in subsidized housing 
• Set neighborhood quotas  
• Ban signs 
• Require adequate parking and garbage disposal 
• Require hosts to post noise regulations 
• Require a local contact person 
• Require physical safety and habitability inspections 

 
Staff identified the following open items for discussion at the workshop: 
 

1. Discuss permitting STRS in all residential zoning districts as an accessory use. 
2. Discuss how to further regulate STRS by requiring a minimum distance from one another. In regards to multi-

family units, discuss requiring a percentage of how many would be allowed. 
 

COMMISSIONER AUGUSTYNIAK questioned how to regulate the fact that the property is owner-occupied.  Ms. Clarke 
replied this could be done through the licensing and the applicant has the burden to prove they occupy the home as their 
primary residence. 
 
CHAIRMAN SHAW noted that the Village regulations have to be enforceable.  Crime Free housing is an important issue 
that should be considered.  With the expansion of the Village the short term rental could increase.  Ms. Clarke noted the 
license would be an annual license and the Village would have the ability to revoke the license if there were a certain 
amount of complaints or disturbances.  CHAIRMAN SHAW inquired about the administrative fee for the license and if 
there also would be a tax on the revenue.  Ms. Clarke noted there have been discussions on this and some communities 
have done that.  At this point, the Board does not want to require a tax.   



 Minutes of the Village of Tinley Park Plan Commission  
                         February 7, 2019           

Page 10 of 11 

 
COMMISSIONER AUGUSTYNIAK inquired about the other communities that license short term rentals.  Ms. Clarke 
noted there are several communities currently participating.  Some communities apply the tax and some don’t.   
 
CHAIRMAN SHAW noted there are a lot of rentals in the Village that have not taken the Crime Free Housing classes.  
This could be penalizing the hotels in the Village by subsidizing the short term rentals.  This is an equity issue.  The idea 
of having some type of density radius is attractive.  This is something that the Village should be proactive with before it 
gets out of hand.  The enforcement issue is important.   
 
Ms. Clarke inquired if this should be appropriate as an accessory use to a residential home.  This would make it permitted 
in all the residential districts as an accessory use.  She will come back with some suggestions on regulating the distance 
from each other.  Ms. Clarke also asked about the multi-family being handled in a similar way with a 25% quota.      
 
COMMISSIONER STANTON inquired about more data from other communities.   
 
CHAIRMAN SHAW noted the need to determine what parts of the Village would be geographically attractive now or in 
the future to short term rental.  This could be an easy thing to carve out.  In some parts of the Village it may be attractive, 
but we still wouldn’t want it.  Some of this would fall under zoning.   
 
COMMISSIONER STANTON noted it would be good to take a specific area like the downtown area near the train 
station. This could centralize the area.   
 
CHAIRMAN SHAW noted whether or not it makes sense to have a zone based on what is already attractive.  It also could 
be the southern half of the Village near the amphitheater. From an administrative perspective, it might be good to have a 
corridor or strip, not necessarily by zone.  It is important to make it painless and easy to comply and make it painful to not 
comply.   
 
CHAIRMAN SHAW inquired as to what is the next step and timeline in the approval process.  We can engage the public 
and seek information from the community.   
 
Ms. Clarke replied there is a scheduled Public Hearing on February 21st, but that may be too soon.  We can also discuss it 
with the marketing department to get it out to the public.  It would be good to get the public opinion.   
 
COMMISSIONER VICK noted it would be good to get it out there and get further public opinion.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 Minutes of the Village of Tinley Park Plan Commission  
                         February 7, 2019           

Page 11 of 11 

 
GOOD OF THE ORDER: 
 

1. The Mental Health Center has been a big point of discussion. There are various committees established internally 
and externally.  There have been discussions with the Park and School Districts.  There is a preferred developer, 
Melody Square that the Village is working with.  The goal is to have the Developer post an IDOT style meeting 
with image boards and invite the public.  No date as of yet.  The current information is on the Village Web Site.  
CHAIRMAN SHAW noted there are two Senate Bills that have been introduced.  He would like to make sure the 
Plan Commission is appropriately engaged in the planning process.   

2. North Street to Plan Commission workshop is tentatively scheduled for February 21st. 
3. Banging Gavel and SIP are in for building permits. 
4. Magnuson Residential Apartments is in for permits.  Probably will start in the spring. 
5. Bremen Cash Store – Village has made some adjustments to the incentive requested by the developer.  

 
COMMENTS FROM THE COMMISSION 
 
None at this time. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 

None at this time. 

ADJOURNMENT: 

There being no further business, a Motion was made by PLAN COMMISSIONER AUGUSTYNIAK, seconded by PLAN 
COMMISSIONER MANI to adjourn the Regular Meeting of the Plan Commission of February 7, 2019 at                                                                                             
8:30 p.m. The Motion was unanimously approved by voice call.  PLAN COMMISSION CHAIRMAN SHAW declared 
the meeting adjourned. 



February 21, 2019 

 
CTF Illinois 

6800 – 6820 Centennial Drive 

 

 
 

 
The Petitioner, CTF Illinois, is seeking approval of a Special Use Permit for a Substantial 

Deviation from the Brementowne Mall Planned Unit Development (PUD) that would allow 

for exterior storage of vehicles and buses in the front yard at the properties located at 

6800 – 6820 Centennial Drive in the B-2 PD (Community Shopping, Brementowne Mall 

PUD) zoning district. 

 

CTF Illinois is a not-for-profit organization that helps to assist people with developmental 

disabilities and their families. They provide educational, training, vocational and other 

opportunities that allow people with developmental disabilities to grow and become more 

independent. CTF Illinois currently operates many programs at 6775 Prosperi Drive in 

Tinley Park and will be relocating some of their programs to this new location. The 

organization’s use is permitted as a Vocational Education Facility. However, to assist in its 

mission, they often use vans and 12-15 person buses to transport its students. These 

buses and vans are typically kept on-site so that staff does not need to retrieve them from 

off-site locations.  

 

Open Storage is prohibited in all Business Districts including the storage of vehicles over 

8,000 lbs.; the CTF buses exceed this weight limit.  In addition, open storage is not 

permitted in front or corner side yards. As part of a Planned Unit Development there are 

opportunities for more flexibility when considering exceptions to the code; the request 

has been reviewed by staff in context of the approved PUD.   

 

Changes to the February 7, 2019 Workshop Staff Report are in Red. 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Petitioner 

CTF Illinois 

 

Property Location 

6800 – 6820  

Centennial Drive 

 

PIN 

28-19-100-050-0000 & 

28-19-100-051-0000 

 

Zoning 

B-2 PD (Community 

Shopping, Brementowne 

Mall PUD) 

 

Approvals Sought 

Special Use Permit 

 

 

 

 

 

Project Planner 

Daniel Ritter, AICP 

Senior Planner 
 



CTF Illinois – 6800-6820 Centennial Dr. 

 

Page 2 of 8 

 
CTF Illinois is looking to purchase the buildings 

at 6800-6820 Centennial Drive. The site includes 

two buildings that total a little over 20,000 

square feet. CTF currently operates at a 40,000 

square foot space at 6775 Prosperi Drive and 

also operates The Painted Turtle art studio at 

17459 Oak Park Avenue in downtown Tinley 

Park. CTF will not be relocating the entire 

capacity of its Prosperi Drive location to this 

site. Some of the program’s capabilities will be 

relocated to nearby locations in Orland Park 

and Homewood. 

 

The proposed location has traditionally been 

utilized as office space for medical and service 

uses. The subject site consists of two buildings 

on two (2) separate lots approved in 1989 and 

constructed in 1990 for Prudential Insurance. 

The site was most recently owned and primarily 

utilized by Mack Companies. 

 

 

The subject parcels are zoned B-2 PD (Community 

Shopping, Brementowne Mall PUD). One (1) of the parcels 

appears not to be located in the PUD but this is an error 

on the Zoning layer and both parcels are located in the 

Brementowne PUD. The properties to the north 

(KinderCare) and west (Medical Office) are located in the 

same B-2 PD (Community Shopping, Brementowne Mall 

PUD). To the south is Brementowne Manor which is an 

assisted living development zoned R7 PD (Medium-density 

residential, Brementowne Manor PUD). To the east is 

Bremen Woods which is unincorporated land owned by 

Cook County Forest Preserve District. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



CTF Illinois – 6800-6820 Centennial Dr. 

 

Page 3 of 8 

 
The use of the site as a Vocational Educational Facility is a permitted use. However, open exterior storage of a 

business’s vehicles over 8,000 lbs. are prohibited in all business zoning districts. They are permitted in the M-1 

(Manufacturing) and MU-1 (Duvan Drive Mixed-Use Overlay) zoning districts and with a special use permit in the ORI 

(Office and Restricted Industrial). The Brementowne Mall PUD allows for some flexibility in regards to these open 

storage requirements due to the unique design and location of the site and the unique characteristics of the 

proposed organization. Additionally, it is important to note that the vehicle storage is accessory to the principal and 

permitted use as a vocational educational facility. Vehicle storage is not required to operate the principal use and is 

only to help assist in the organizational mission. The proposed Substantial Deviation will permit up to eight (8) 

vehicles to be stored on-site in the front yard. These vehicles include four (4) vans, three (3) 12-person buses, and 

one (1) 15-person bus. Only the buses exceed the weight limitation and must receive approval. 

 

 

 
Above: Examples of the van and bus that would be stored on-site at 6800-6820 Centennial Drive. 

 
Open Item #1: Discuss the Special Use Permit for a Substantial Deviation from the PUD to permit open storage of 

vehicles over 8,000 lbs. 

 

 
Site Plan and Landscape 

 

There are no immediate 

changes proposed to the site 

layout, lighting, landscaping or 

building architecture. The 

Petitioner has proposed three 

(3) options for where the buses 

and vans could be stored on 

the site within legally stripped 

parking spaces. Staff 

recommends parking similar to 

“Option 2” that would located 

the vehicles on the southwest 

side of the property where it is 

least visible from Oak Park 

Avenue and separated from the 

rest of the parking field.  

 



CTF Illinois – 6800-6820 Centennial Dr. 

 

Page 4 of 8 

The existing parking lot is entirely located in the primary and secondary front yards of the properties. Due to the 

existing nature of the site and the current layout, there are no alternative options that would allow the vehicles to 

be parked in the rear yard; the vehicles will be parked in a front yard regardless of their location on the site.  

 

Screening is required around the proposed vehicle storage area to screen it from public view. However, there are no 

additional locations where trees or bushes can be added that will give them enough room to survive. Additionally, 

fencing in the front yard is only likely to detract from the site and creates visibility concerns. The site currently has 

extensive landscaping on the site that is properly maintained. The landscaping was proposed and installed in 2009 

(approved Landscape Plan is attached). The landscaping on this site will be required to be maintained at its current 

high level which will continue to keep the property appealing. 

 

Locating the storage of vehicles exceeding 8,000 pounds in the front yard will require an exception to the PUD. Staff 

is recommending the Commission approve this exception as part of the Substantial Deviation. 
 

Open Item #2: Discuss different potential parking locations for 12-15 person buses and vans. 
 

Open Item #3: Discuss any potential screening options and adequacy of previously approved Landscape Plan. 
 

Open Item #4: Discuss open storage of vehicles in the front yard as an exception to the PUD. 
 

 
Above: 2009 Approved Site and Landscape Plan 

 

The Plan Commission discussed potential adjacent property concerns and visual appearances at the workshop. The 

property is on a corner lot and only has parking the front yards, with no bay yard portion of the property where the 

vehicle could be stored. The Commission agreed the best location for the bus storage be parked in the southwest 

corner of the property up against the building (Parking Option 2 provided by the Petitioner). The parking spaces will 

be restriped to accommodate the bus width and will be signed to prevent visitor or employees from parking at 

those locations. The vans can be parked closer to the street nearby to the buses. These vans do comply with the 

weight limit and could be moved if there are any visual concerns with them in the future. It was clarified that CTF 

Illinois will be occupying most of the property, with a two existing tenants remaining in the building at least until 

their leases expire. The approved landscaping buffer will be inspected in the spring and required to be restored if 

anything is lacking.  



CTF Illinois – 6800-6820 Centennial Dr. 

 

Page 5 of 8 

The following photos indicate the views from surrounding properties in regards to where the buses and vans are 

expected to be stored, which are indicated by the purple arrow. 

 

              
Left: Looking west at medical property from proposed CTF property.                 Right: Looking east at proposed CTF property from sidewalk. 

 

                   
Left: Looking north at proposed CTF property from Tinley Manor.                     Right: Looking east at proposed CTF property from Medical property. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



CTF Illinois – 6800-6820 Centennial Dr. 

 

Page 6 of 8 

Parking 

 

Village parking regulations provides little guidance for this unique use.  Office uses are based on square footage at a 

ratio of 1 space per 250 SF of floor space. This results in a requirement of 80 spaces, however the overall site 

parking is expected to be adequate based on the number of employees and anticipated visitor count. There are 

currently 86 parking spaces, which will be reduced by 12 spaces due to the proposed bus and van storage. The 

results in 74 available spaces. Staff is expected to be a maximum of 40 at this location, resulting in approximately 34 

available spaces for additional visitors and guests. While CTF has had some parking issues at their current Prosperi 

Drive location, that site is twice as large as the proposed location and has a very limited parking field (approximately 

53 spaces). This new location is expected to better meet their needs in regards to parking and building function. 

 

Open Item #5: Discuss proposed parking supply and reduction in available spaces from 86 to 74 due to vehicle 

storage. 

 

The Petitioner clarified they are expecting approximately 30 staff members at this location, with the maximum it 

would ever have at 40. Students do not transport themselves and are typically dropped off or transported to the site 

with the buses and vans. This location is expected to have adequate parking to serve their needs. Their will have 

enough parking for employees, vehicle storage and visitors. The number of visitors are fairly limited in regards to 

numbers and frequency. 

 

Signage 

 

No signage has been proposed by the Petitioner yet. However, any signage is expected to comply with the current 

zoning code requirements and will be reviewed for conformance during permitting.  

 

The buses and vans will be plain white and will not have any signage, identification or graphics located on them. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



CTF Illinois – 6800-6820 Centennial Dr. 

 

Page 7 of 8 

 

Section X.J.5. of the Zoning Ordinance lists standards that need to be considered by the Plan Commission. The Plan 

Commission is encouraged to consider these standards (listed below) when analyzing a Special Use request. 

Findings of Fact have been drafted by staff and outlined below for Plan Commission consideration. 

 

X.J.5. Standards: No Special Use shall be recommended by the Plan Commission unless said Commission shall find: 
 

a. That the establishment, maintenance, or operation of the Special Use will not be detrimental to or 

endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort, or general welfare; 

 The Substantial Deviation for open storage of buses and vans used by the Vocational Educational Facility 

will not be detrimental to the health and welfare of the public. 
 

b. That the Special Use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate 

vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminish and impair property values within 

the neighborhood; 

 The Substantial Deviation for open storage of buses exceeding 8,000 lbs. used by the Vocational 

Educational Facility will not affect surrounding properties or their values. 
 

c. That the establishment of the Special Use will not impede the normal and orderly development and 

improvement of surrounding property for uses permitted in the district; 

 The buildings and site are existing. The storage of small buses and vans on the facility will not affect 

surrounding property development. 
 

d. That adequate utilities, access roads, drainage, and/or other necessary facilities have been or are being 

provided; 

 The buildings and site are existing and already connected to adequate existing utilities, roads, and 

drainage systems. 
 

e. That adequate measures have been or will be taken to provide ingress and egress so designed as to 

minimize traffic congestion in the public streets; and 

 The facility is existing and has an adequate existing site layout and access to minimize traffic congestion 

on public streets. All loading and unloading of students will take place on private property. 
 

f. That the Special Use shall, in all other respects, conform to the applicable regulations of the district in 

which it is located, except as such regulations may in each instance be modified by the Village Board 

pursuant to the recommendation of the Plan Commission.  The Village Board shall impose such 

conditions and restrictions upon the premises benefited by a Special Use Permit as may be necessary to 

ensure compliance with the above standards, to reduce or minimize the effect of such permit upon 

other properties in the neighborhood, and to better carry out the general intent of this Ordinance.  

Failure to comply with such conditions or restrictions shall constitute a violation of this Ordinance. 

 The use of the facility as a Vocational Educational Facility is a permitted use and the business will 

otherwise comply with all Village regulations. 
 

g. The extent to which the Special Use contributes directly or indirectly to the economic development of 

the community as a whole. 

 The Facility will utilize the entirety of an office center that has been largely vacant over the last few years. 

The service provided by the organization is needed and beneficial to the community. 
 

It is also important to recognize that a Special Use Permit does not run with the land and instead the Special Use 

Permit is tied to the Petitioner. This is different from a process such as a variance, since a variance will forever apply 

to the property to which it is granted. Staff encourages the Plan Commission to refer to Section X.J.6. to examine the 

conditions where a Special Use Permit will expire. 



CTF Illinois – 6800-6820 Centennial Dr. 

 

Page 8 of 8 

 

If the Plan Commission wishes to take action, an appropriate wording of the motions would read:  

 

“… make a motion to recommend that the Village Board grant the Petitioner, CTF Illinois, a Special Use Permit for a 

Substantial Deviation from the Brementowne Mall Planned Unit Development (PUD) to allow for open storage of 

vehicles and buses in the front yard at the properties located at 6800 – 6820 Centennial Drive in the B-2 PD 

(Community Shopping, Brementowne Mall PUD) zoning district and adopt the Findings of Fact proposed by Village 

Staff and the Plan Commission at this meeting, subject to the following condition: 

 

1. The storage of the proposed four buses be located at the southwest corner of the site up against the 

building, as depicted in the attached site plan identified as Option 2.” 

 

…with the following conditions: [any conditions that the Commissioners would like to add]  
 
 
 

 

 

Submitted Sheet Name 
Prepared 

By 

Date On 

Sheet 

Parking Options and Drop-off Pattern CTF Illinois n/a 

Site Plan Narrative CTF Illinois n/a 

 



 

 

 

SITE PLAN ADDENDUM NARRATIVE 

 

 

Property:   6800-6820 Centennial Drive 

Purchaser:  Community Services Foundation 

Lessee:   CTF ILLINOIS 

Proposed Use:   Day Training Programing for Adults with Intellectual Disabilities 

Hours of Operation: 6:30 am - 5:00 pm 

Hours of Supports:   7:30 am - 3:00 pm 

 

History 

Community Service Foundation (Foundation) has been rooted in the Tinley Park community since the 
early 80’s when Southwest Community Services opened its doors on Duvan Drive.  In 2001, we moved 
our program space to Prosperi Drive where we remain to occupy today and in 2014 became an Oak Park 
vendor when we opened the Painted Turtle. The Foundation has been and continues to be a proud 
member of the Tinley Park Chamber of Commerce. 

Recently, the Foundation received an offer to sell its Prosperi building and hence began our search to 
occupy new space.  We are leaving a 40,000 square foot building in order to provide enhancements to 
our supports and therefore our search to locate smaller building ensued. 

Proposed Use 

The Foundation is currently perusing the above property to become a day training support for our adult 
with high physical and sensory needs.  Once fully occupied, each building will have approximately 40 
individuals and 15 staff. 

Most of the individuals will be transported by their residential facility or PACE, however, the individuals 
that live with family members will be transported by the CTF ILLINOIS transportation system.  Our 
current fleet is 8 vehicles that will require overnight parking. 

The 6820 Centennial Drive Building currently has two tenants.  Once their lease is expired, CTF will be 
the sole lessee. 























February 21, 2019 

 
Anytime Fitness 

17823 80th Avenue 
  

 

 
 

 

The petitioner, Derek Tucker of Anytime Fitness, is seeking a Special Use Permit for a 

Fitness Center (Commercial Indoor Recreation) location that is greater than 3,500 square 

feet in floor space. The Anytime Fitness location would be located at 17823 80th Avenue in 

The Junction at 80th Avenue Shopping Center in the B-1 (Neighborhood Shopping) Zoning 

District. The proposed Special Use Permit will allow the previous Sanfrantello’s Pizza & 

Banquet space to be converted to a fitness and health club. 

 

Anytime Fitness is a chain of fitness centers that focus on availability to members 24-

hours a day, 365 days a year. Currently, there are over 2,700 Anytime Fitness locations in 

the United States and Canada while there are over 4,200 locations worldwide including 

nearby locations in Oak Forest, Frankfort, and Orland Park. This location will be 

approximately 6,000 square feet in size. There will be various workout equipment and 

additional services such as group classes, personal training, tanning, and hydro-massage. 

The center is open 24 hours a day for members with key card access. There are many 

safety and security measures Anytime Fitness puts in place at all locations to make sure 

members feel safe at all times including emergency panic buttons and security cameras. 

 

The primary concern with fitness centers and other commercial indoor recreational uses 

is a potential for high levels of traffic and parking due to heavy peak times and quick 

customer turnover (less than 1 hour), particularly in locations with multiple commercial 

tenants. The proposed location appears to have an adequate parking supply and traffic 

access based upon the projected peak parking demand. 

 

Changes to the February 7, 2019 Workshop Staff Report are in Red. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Petitioner 

Derek Tucker,  

Anytime Fitness 

 

Property Location 

17823 80th Avenue 

 

PIN 

27-36-121-031-0000 

 

Zoning 

B-1, Neighborhood 

Shopping 

 

Urban Overlay District 

 

Approvals Sought 

Special Use Permit 

 

 

 

 

 

Project Planner 

Daniel Ritter, AICP 

Senior Planner 
 



Anytime Fitness – 17823 80th Ave 

 

Page 2 of 7 

 
The proposed tenant space is located within 

The Junction at 80th Avenue shopping center 

which includes approximately 25,000 square 

feet of commercial space and is located just 

north of the 80th Avenue train station. The 

shopping center was approved in 1997 and 

constructed in 1998. The architecture, site 

layout and high-quality materials used 

throughout the center were required to 

complement the location near the train 

station. The center currently includes many 

tenants including a Chinese restaurant, travel 

agent, cleaners, dentist, salon, physical 

therapist and an accountant service. 

Additionally, there is a bank out lot (currently 

CIBC) on the southwest corner of the site. 

The bank and shopping center have an 

existing cross parking agreement that was 

required during the initial development 

approvals. The proposed Anytime Fitness 

tenant space was previously Sanfrantello’s 

Pizza, a casual Italian restaurant and banquet 

facility, which opened in 2001 and closed in 

2015. The approximately 6,000 square foot 

tenant space is the largest tenant space in 

the shopping center. Four other tenant 

spaces are currently vacant (including both 

end-cap spaces). 
 

 

The shopping center is zoned B-1 Neighborhood 

Shopping. The B-1 zoning district only permits low 

intensity uses so that traffic generation and other 

negative effects on surrounding residential areas 

are limited. The shopping center is located within 

the Urban Design Overlay district, but was 

developed before its adoption into the zoning 

code. The Urban Design Overlay’s intends to 

promote development that is walkable, utilizes 

alternative forms of transportation and limits the 

undesirable effects of automobiles. 
 

The surrounding area includes single-family homes 

zoned R-3 (Single-Family Residential) to the west 

across 80th Avenue. To the south is the Tinley Park 

80th Avenue Metra Station parking lot zoned ORI 

(Office and Restricted Industrial). To the east are 

single-family attached townhomes zoned R-5 PD 

(Low-Density Residential, Bristol Park PUD). 

 

 

B-1 R-3 
R-5 PD 

R-2 PD 

ORI 



Anytime Fitness – 17823 80th Ave 

 

Page 3 of 7 

 
Anytime Fitness is a fitness and health club use that is covered under the Commercial Indoor Recreation use group. 

In addition to fitness and health clubs, commercial indoor recreation includes uses such as racquetball, baseball 

cages, trampoline parks, dance/yoga studios, bowling, miniature golf and more.  The use group is further separated 

based on a business’s floor space being above and below 3,500 square feet. While there is nothing specific about 

the 3,500 square foot number, a limit was included because concerns tend to emerge when a recreation space 

becomes too large. There are generally fewer concerns for smaller spaces such as personal training or a small group 

dance studio. The primary concern is in regards to the number of customers that can utilize the indoor recreation 

space and its effects on parking demand and traffic generation. Depending on the specifics of the business, there is 

the possibility for very high peak parking demand and large traffic flows in and out of the site due to the quick 

turnover (typically 30mins - 1hr). This means hours of operation, parking supply, curb access, and site layout can all 

play a significant role in the acceptability of a use in a Neighborhood Shopping district. Other concerns can include 

general safety, security, noise generation and compliance with building and fire code requirements. 

 

Commercial Indoor Recreation above 3,500 square feet is a Special Use in the B-1 (Neighborhood Shopping) and B-2 

(Community Shopping) zoning districts. The use would be permitted in B-3 zoning district because those properties 

have typically been designed with heavy vehicle traffic in mind. B-1 (Neighborhood Shopping) districts are typically 

more neighborhood and pedestrian-oriented with smaller parking fields, limited access points, and “non-

objectionable” businesses. Commercial Indoor Recreation uses are permitted in any business district if the business 

is below 3,500 square feet in size. 

 

USE Zoning District 

B-1 

(Neighborhood) 

B-2 

(Community) 

B-3 

(General) 

B-4 

(Office/ 

Service) 

B-5 

(Auto) 

ORI M-1 MU-1 

(Duvan 

Drive) 

Recreation, 

commercial indoor 

(< 3,500 sq ft) 

P P P P P X X P 

Recreation, 

commercial indoor 

(> 3,500 sq ft) 

S S P P P X X P 

Key: S = Special Use, P = Permitted Use, X = Prohibited Use 

Table from Section V-B-Schedule I (Schedule of Permitted Uses) of the Zoning Code. 

 

Open Item #1: Discuss Petitioner’s request for a Special Use Permit for a 6,008 square foot fitness/health club (Commercial 

Indoor Recreation). 

 

The Commission had some parking and security concerns that were outlined and addressed by the Petitioner at the 

workshop. The Petitioner explained there were no parking issues at their surrounding locations, which are similar in 

size and in similar multi-tenant shopping centers. There are no other 24-hour businesses in the shopping center 

(with the closest 24-hour businesses being Speedway on 80th Ave and Super Wash on 175th St). There are many 

security procedures to ensure their customers feel safe and secure including 911-call button lanyards, cameras, and 

a “tailgating system” to ensure only one person is entering the facility for each key swipe. The location is also very 

close to the Tinley Park Police Department. The proposed use of the space was generally supported by the 

Commission and will fill a large vacancy in an existing neighborhood shopping center.  



Anytime Fitness – 17823 80th Ave 

 

Page 4 of 7 

 
Anytime Fitness will be taking approximately 6,000 square feet of floor space. However, compared to similar fitness 

locations such as LA Fitness or Planet Fitness, Anytime Fitness is expected to have a more intimate and smaller club 

feel. Additional services at the club include small group sessions, personal training, tanning and hydro-therapy. 

Anytime Fitness is open 24 hours a day, so they also tend to have many customers that might have odd work 

schedules. This location is expected to draw from a wide range of customers in the area including interest from 

Metra commuters who want to work out before or after work. The business model is described further in the 

attached submittals provided by the petitioner. 

 

 

No changes to the exterior of the building architecture, site layout, lighting or landscaping are proposed with the 

new business and are all existing. There are some existing property maintenance issues in the shopping center; 

these are being addressed with the property owner and include: peeling paint, broken garbage cans, broken light 

fixtures, and missing landscaping. Code Enforcement will be reaching out to the owner to address these violations 

as soon as possible. 
 

The petitioner has not supplied any proposed exterior signage. It is expected that any wall signs and ground sign 

panel changes will meet the Zoning Code requirements, similar to the shopping center’s existing businesses. 

 

Open Item #2: Supply proposed signage information. If no signage is proposed, all signs will need to conform to 

the existing Zoning Code requirements. 
 

Wall signage will be submitted for a separate permit that meets the Zoning Code requirements. An existing 

shopping center ground sign will be used and have new vinyl panels installed. 
 

 

The petitioner has supplied a parking summary completed by Matt Gaunt, PE of SE3 Engineering. The shopping 

center includes a field of 157 parking spaces (not including CIBS parking lot). Due to the layout of the shopping 

center, the parking field is not evenly dispersed among tenants, with the majority of the parking located on the 

north side of the site. There is also some parking in the rear of the property, primarily for the business’s employees. 

The site currently has an observed peak parking of 28 spaces during evening hours (5pm - 7pm), although it should 

be noted that five tenant’s spaces including the Anytime Fitness space are currently vacant. Based on the proposed 

size, Anytime Fitness has been allotted 29 parking spaces per their lease with the landlord. 

 

The expected peak parking demand for Anytime Fitness is based off a similar location in Oak Forest (slightly larger 

in size at 6,900 square feet). The expected customer information was based on how many members swiped into the 

Oak Forest facility during their peak times between 5pm and 7pm. The peak demand is expected to be 17 vehicles 

based upon 15 members/customers and two employees. The number of vehicles could be less because members 

often drive together or take alternative forms of transportation (walk, bike, dropped off or ride-sharing services are 

some examples). However, to create a conservative estimate, it is being assumed that each person is driving to the 

business in a separate vehicle. There are slight morning rushes, however these are typically less than the evening 

rush and the majority of the shopping center’s businesses are not open yet. 

 

With the addition of Anytime Fitness, the shopping center’s peak parking estimate is expected to be 45 vehicles (28 

existing + 17 additional) out of the available 157 parking spaces. When projecting typical parking demand of 5-7 

parking spaces per 1,000 square feet of commercial space for the four vacant spaces (approximately 9,700 square 

feet), there is still expected to be an excess of parking spaces. Previously when Sanfrantellos Pizza operated, parking 

was be tight due to heavy traffic form their banquet business. However, Anytime Fitness is expected to have a much 

lower peak parking demand than a large restaurant and banquet facility. 



Anytime Fitness – 17823 80th Ave 

 

Page 5 of 7 

 

In addition to the shopping center parking field, there is an existing cross-parking easement between the shopping 

center and the bank properties. The bank closes at 5pm on most days which allows for addition parking if there was 

any overflow in the future. Cross-parking easements were a requirement of the original Plat of Subdivision and Site 

Plan approvals to ensure there was enough available parking during evening hours and because of the lack of 

convenient parking adjacent to the south side of the shopping center building. 

 

Open Item #3: Review and discuss parking supply and demand as indicated in the parking analysis.  

 

The petitioner clarified there are two to four staff members during their staffed hours which are typically Monday-

Thursday 10am-7pm with more limited hours on Friday and Saturday. Personal trainers may also be at the facility 

beyond those typical staffed hours based on their appointments. Based on expected peak parking demand, existing 

parking supply, and existing tenant hours parking concerns are minimal based upon the unique operations (open 

24 hours) and proposed size (slightly less than 6000 sq. ft.) of the proposed business. Even with other vacancies in 

the shopping projected to be occupied, there appears to be an adequate supply of parking to handle this use based 

upon the Petitioner’s parking analysis and experience when the shopping center was full. 

 

 

 

Section X.J.5. of the Zoning Ordinance lists standards that need to be considered by the Plan Commission. The Plan 

Commission is encouraged to consider these standards (listed below) when analyzing a Special Use request. 

Findings of Fact have been drafted by staff and outlined below for Plan Commission consideration. 

 

X.J.5. Standards: No Special Use shall be recommended by the Plan Commission unless said Commission shall find: 

 

a. That the establishment, maintenance, or operation of the Special Use will not be detrimental to or 

endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort, or general welfare; 

 The business will have a multitude of safety and security measures in place to protect its member when 

the location is not staffed. The business not be detrimental to or endanger the public health, safety, 

morals, comfort, or general welfare of the Community. 

 

b. That the Special Use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate 

vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminish and impair property values within 

the neighborhood; 

 The business will not harm surrounding properties and is expected to increase the property ’s value and 

customer base of existing businesses in the shopping center. 

 

c. That the establishment of the Special Use will not impede the normal and orderly development and 

improvement of surrounding property for uses permitted in the district; 

 The shopping center is existing and no changes are proposed to the exterior. The business will have no 

effect on the surrounding development. 

 

d. That adequate utilities, access roads, drainage, and/or other necessary facilities have been or are being 

provided; 

 The shopping center is existing and no changes are proposed to the exterior. The site is adequately 

supplied with utilities, roads, and drainage facilities. 

 

e. That adequate measures have been or will be taken to provide ingress and egress so designed as to 

minimize traffic congestion in the public streets; and 



Anytime Fitness – 17823 80th Ave 

 

Page 6 of 7 

 The existing shopping center access and site layout is adequate to handle the proposed traffic of the 

use and will not cause increased traffic congestion on or around the site. 

 

f. That the Special Use shall, in all other respects, conform to the applicable regulations of the district in 

which it is located, except as such regulations may in each instance be modified by the Village Board 

pursuant to the recommendation of the Plan Commission. The Village Board shall impose such 

conditions and restrictions upon the premises benefited by a Special Use Permit as may be necessary to 

ensure compliance with the above standards, to reduce or minimize the effect of such permit upon 

other properties in the neighborhood, and to better carry out the general intent of this Ordinance.  

Failure to comply with such conditions or restrictions shall constitute a violation of this Ordinance. 

 The Petitioner has indicated they will meet all other Village regulations and cannot change or expand 

from what has been present at the public hearing. 

 

g. The extent to which the Special Use contributes directly or indirectly to the economic development of 

the community as a whole. 

 The business is expected to benefit the economic development of the community by brining additional 

traffic to a struggling neighborhood retail center. Anytime Fitness fill the largest tenant space that has 

been vacant since 2015 and provided a needed service to the surrounding community. 

 

It is also important to recognize that a Special Use Permit does not run with the land and instead the Special Use 

Permit is tied to the Petitioner. This is different from a process such as a variance, since a variance will forever apply 

to the property to which it is granted. Staff encourages the Plan Commission to refer to Section X.J.6. to examine the 

conditions where a Special Use Permit will expire. 

 



Anytime Fitness – 17823 80th Ave 

 

Page 7 of 7 

 

If the Plan Commission wishes to take action, an appropriate wording of the motions would read:  

 

“… make a motion to recommend that the Village Board grant the Petitioner, Derek Tucker of Anytime Fitness, a 

Special Use Permit to operate a Fitness Center (Commercial Indoor Recreation) that is greater than 3,500 square 

feet in floor space at 17823 80th Avenue in the B-1 (Neighborhood Shopping) Zoning District and adopt the Findings 

of Fact proposed by Village Staff and the Plan Commission at this meeting.” 

 

…with the following conditions: [any conditions that the Commissioners would like to add]  

 

 

Submitted Sheet Name Prepared By 
Date On 

Sheet 

Existing Land Survey Tech 3 Consulting 10-15-97 

Existing Site Plan and Parking Layout Tech 3 Consulting 8-27-98 

Existing Shopping Center Layout Unknown Unknown 

Internal Floor Plan (Compliance Drawing) Wilkus Architects 12-13-18 

Anytime Fitness Parking Study (Tinley Park) SE3 Engineers 1-28-19 

Anytime Fitness Brochure (Lets Make Happy Healthy) Anytime Fitness 2019 

Anytime Fitness Brochure (Overview) Anytime Fitness 2014 

 















CUBBIES

BENCH

CUBBIES

SOFFIT

R
ETA

IL

LO
G
O
 W

ALL

S
T-1

103' - 4 1/2" VIF

IN
S

P
IR

A
T

IO
N

 W
A

L
L

P
D

E
-1

/P
L
-1

3

H
O

L
D

1
0

' 
- 

0
"

MANIFESTO WALL
PL-12

7'-0" x 7'-0"  CLEAR 
FLOOR SPACE -
NO EQUIPMENT 

ALLOWED

7' - 0"

C
L

E
A

R
4

' 
- 

0
" 

M
IN

4
' 
- 

0
"

4' - 0"

T-1

HALL

T-2

RESTROOM SC

STORAGE /
UTILITY

VP-1

MULTI-PURPOSE
ROOM

415 SF

RF-1

FREE
WEIGHTS

1097 SF

TURF

FUNCTIONAL
TRAINING

720 SF

CA-1

TRAINER

CA-1

OFFICE

T-1

MEMBER
LOBBY

T-1

GUEST LOBBY

CA-1

CARDIO

CA-1

STRENGTH
TRAINING

T-1

TANNING

T-1

HYDRO
MASSAGE

T-1

VESTIBULE

T-1

HYDRO
MASSAGE

T-1

TANNING

T-2

RESTROOM
T-2

RESTROOM

ST-1 WRAPS ENDS OF WALL -
REFER TO DESIGN MANUAL

REQUIRED PRE-MANUFACTURED 
SOFFIT - REFER TO DESIGN MANUAL 
DETAIL & INTERIOR SIGNAGE 
PROGRAM - PRE-FINISHED

'AFIT NATION' 
GRAPHIC REQUIRED 
- REFER TO 
INTERIOR SIGNAGE 
PROGRAM

VERIFY THAT REQUIRED 
SECOND EMERGENCY EXIT 
DOOR COMPLIES WITH ALL 
STATE AND LOCAL CODES

20' - 10" 9' - 5" 5' - 1 3/4" 3' - 3 1/2" 4' - 1 1/4" 12' - 11" 8' - 1 1/2" 6' - 10" 10' - 2 1/2"

9
' 
- 

5
"

9
' 
- 

2
 1

/2
" 3
' 
- 

2
 1

/2
"

6
' 
- 

0
"

6
' 
- 

0
"

3
' 
- 

5
"

1
6

' 
- 

8
 1

/4
"

8
' 
- 

5
"

1
0

' 
- 

5
"

1
0

' 
- 

5
"

1
2

' 
- 

5
 1

/2
"

9' - 6 3/4" 9' - 2"

2
0

' 
- 

0
"

36' - 0"

3
8

' 
- 

5
"

36' - 0"

2
0

' 
- 

3
 1

/2
"

VERIFY LOCATION OF 
EXISTING ELECTRICAL 
PANEL

VERIFY LOCATION OF 
EXISTING STOREFRONT

AFLP COMMUNICATION KIT WITH RECESSED TIMER 
OUTLET MUST BE LOCATED ON THIS WALL, WITHIN 
TURF AREA.  COORDINATE WITH ANY FUNCTIONAL 
TRAINING EQUIPMENT AND/OR STORAGE RACKS.  
MUST BE VISIBLE TO MAIN AREA OF TURF. 
- IF OPENING WITHOUT AFLP, OWNER MUST INSTALL 
THE OUTLET AND LEAVE THE WALL SPACE OPEN. 

5
8

' 
- 

5
" 

V
IF

7
' 
- 

0
"

8'
 - 

0"

H
O

L
D

6
' 
- 

0
"

HOLD
5' - 0"

10' - 6"

10' - 2 1/2"

2
' 
- 

9
 1

/4
"

3' - 6"

1
' 
- 

7
"

3
' 
- 

1
1

"

2
0

'-
0

" 
M

A
X

 

1
8

' 
- 

9
 3

/4
"

0 3 6 9 12 15

SHOWER FINISHES:
WALLS: T-3
FLOOR: T-4

RESTROOM FINISHES:
TOILET WALL: T-3/PG-5
ALL OTHERS: T-3/PG-1

V
.T

.K
. 

S
C

R
E

E
N

 T
H

IS
 W

A
L

L
PG-1

PG-1

PG-1

PG-1

PG-1

PG-1

PG-1

PG-1

PG-1

P
G

-1

P
G

-1

P
G

-1
P

G
-1

PG-1

PG-1

PG-1

PG-1

P
G

-1

P
G

-1

P
G

-1

P
G

-1
P

G
-1

P
G

-1

PG-1

PG-1

PG-1

PG-1

P
G

-1

P
G

-1

P
G
-1

PG
-3

P
G

-3

PG-2PG-2
PG-2PG-2 PG-2

PG-2

P
G

-3

P
G

-4

PG-4

P
G

-4
P

G
-4

P
G

-4
P

G
-4

P
G

-4
P

G
-4

P
G

-4
P

G
-4

PG-1

PG-1

PG-5

P
G

-5

P
G

-5

P
G

-4
P

G
-3

PG-1

PG-3

PG-3PG-3

PG-3PG-3

P
G

-3 PG-2

PG-2

PG-2

PG-2

P
G

-2

P
G

-2

PG-2

P
G

-3

PG-1

PG-5

P
G

-5

PROVIDE FURRING AROUND 
EXISTING SURFACE MOUNTED 
ELECTRICAL PANEL AS NEEDED, 
VERIFY IN FIELD

EXISTING WALL

9
"

3 5/8" METAL 
STUDS WRAP 
W/ 5/8" GYP. BD.

PG-3

PG-3

P
G

-3

NEW

EXISTING BACKGROUND, 
INCLUDING DIMENSIONS, ARE 
PROVIDED BY THE 
FRANCHISEE - VERIFY ALL 
DIMENSIONS IN FIELD AND 
NOTIFY ARCHITECT OF ANY 
DISCREPANCIES PRIOR TO 
START OF ANY 
CONSTRUCTION.

BRAND MATTERS!  This 
document was created to ensure 
each club within the Anytime 
Fitness family embodies the spirit 
of the brand.  The information 
provided conveys the aesthetics as 
well as the functionality of the club, 
including, but not limited to: 
materials, finishes, design 
elements and layout.
This document is not to be used 
for construction.  A qualified 
design professional(s) should be 
engaged to prepare detailed 
construction documents and 
ensure compliance with all 
applicable codes and regulations.

REV: DATE:DESCRIPTION:PROJECT LOCATION:

DESIGN MANUAL - OCTOBER 2018

COMPLIANCE 
DRAWING 

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION 

FLOOR PLAN

PROJECT NO:

FINISH FLOOR KEY:

RF-1

CA-1

OTHER 
FLOORING AS 
NOTED

CA = Carpet Floor
T = Porcelain Tile
VCT = Vinyl Composite Tile
RF = Rubber Floor
VP = Vinyl Plank Floor
WF = Wood Floor
SC = Sealed Concrete Floor
STC = Stained Concrete Floor
P-# = Paint
WC = Wallcovering
ST = Manufactured Stone
TURF = ECORE Turf
X = Existing Flooring

The color of the paint for each 
wall is identified by a paint code 
(PL-5, PG-2, etc.).  The 
corresponding paint color is 
specified in the design manual.

A

E

Square Footage shown is a graphic representation based on the data 
received and may vary from the square footage as defined in the lease

DESIGN SCHEME:

PAINT:

DRAWING KEY:

REFER TO DESIGN MANUAL 
FOR ABBREVIATIONS:

DISCLAIMER:

= Existing Wall

= New Wall

= Demo Wall

= Existing Door

= Existing Door close 
off, Remove Hardware 
and Exit Sign

= New Door

= Demo Door

= Floor Transition

= Wall Protection 
               (Required)

2018-12-13Compliance Layout-TINLEY PARK, IL AF#3492  6,200SF

GALLERY

2018-1158



Memorandum

January 28, 2019

TO: Derek Tucker

FROM: Matt Gauntt, PE

SUBJECT: Anytime Fitness, Tinley Park, IL
Parking Study

Anytime fitness proposes to build out a facility in an existing shopping center at the northeast
corner of 179th Street and S. 80th Avenue in the Village of Tinley Park.  This memo is to outline
the parking conditions.  See the aerial map shown below.

The shopping center is partially occupied with a variety of businesses.  They include:

Tenant Use Approximate Size Hours
Athletico Physical Therapy 4,660 SF M-Th: 7-8PM

F: 7-6:30
Sat: 7-noon

Array of Design Salon
Day Spa

Day Spa 1,200 SF M: Closed
T:  10-8
W: 10-9



Memorandum
Tenant Use Approximate Size Hours

Th: 9-9
F: 9-6
Sat: 9-3

DS Services Accountants 3,009 SF By Appointment
GO Travel Travel Agency 884 SF M-F: 9-5

Sat: 9-12
Chen’s Chinese Restaurant 2,013 SF M-Th: 11-9

F-Sun: 11-10
Cambridge Dental
Care

Dentist 1,818 SF M: 12-8
T: 9-5
W: 11-6
Th: 9-5
F: 8-12

Anytime Fitness proposes to take 6,008 SF of the shopping center.  Per the landlord, they are
granted a parking count of 5:1, or 29 parking spaces.

Currently there are 157 parking spaces in the center.  This does not include the CIBC Banking
Center.  With 29,319 SF for the center, that is a parking ratio of approximately 5.35:1

A parking survey was conducted on the site for two PM Peak periods and one AM Peak.  Both
the AM and the PM counts looked at the time from of 5:00 – 7:00.  The total vehicles parked
the parking lot at each time interval are shown below.

Time Frame (AM/PM) 1/17/19 – PM Peak 1/22/19 – AM Peak 1/22/19 – PM Peak
5:00 28 0 18
5:15 24 0 18
5:30 20 2 22
5:45 22 3 19
6:00 22 3 16
6:15 20 4 15
6:30 20 4 14
6:45 18 6 12
7:00 16 7 13

With the current tenants, at most 1/5th of the available parking is being utilized.

Proposed Conditions:

As stated above, Anytime Fitness proposes to occupy approximately 6,008 SF of the shopping
center.  In order to understand the impact of the proposed facility on the parking, we obtained



Memorandum
member key-swipe data from the existing Oak Forest facility.  Oak Forest is approximately 6,900
SF, so a slightly larger facility than is being proposed at Tinley Park.

Club at a Glance - ANYTIME FITNESS OAK FOREST
Usage (Average per Hour)

What the data represents is that for instance, from 6:00 -7:00 PM, 15 patrons would come into
the facility.  The average stay time for a patron would be between 30-60 minutes.  Therefore,
we would expect that at any one time, 15 would be the average maximum number of patrons
in the facility.  In addition to the patrons, there would be 2 employees.

Furthermore, the key swipes may be slightly elevated.  If a patron comes into the facility, leaves
to get something in their car and then returns, then that would count as two key swipes.

It is also important to note that the peak times for the facility would be offset by peak times for
other shopping center uses.  For instance, Friday nights and Saturday nights would be a low
usage time for the Anytime Fitness, but that would be a peak time for a restaurant.  Thus, the
peaks will offset.

Given that the facility would occupy only about half of the allotted parking, we believe that
there will be no negative impact to the available parking at the shopping center.



EDGEMARK COMMERCIAL  
REAL ESTATE SERVICES LLC
2215 York Road, Suite 503
Oak Brook, Illinois 60523
P 630.472.1010 F 630.472.1019
www.edgemarkllc.com

FOR MORE 
INFORMATION 

CONTACT:

SPACE FOR LEASE
THE JUNCTION 

NEC 80th Avenue & 179th Street
Tinley Park, Illinois

Matt Smetana
630.572.5632
msmetana@edgemarkllc.com

Ves Pavlovic
630.572.5607
vpavlovic@edgemarkllc.com

SPACE AVAILABLE FOR LEASE

1,390 Sq Ft | 1,569 Sq Ft | 3,443 Sq Ft

TOTAL GLA

29,319 Sq Ft

PROPERTY HIGHLIGHTS

• Endcap available with potential drive-thru.

• Located at NEC of 80th Ave & 179th St.

• Conveniently located within walking distance                
to the Tinley Park Metra Station.

• Move-in ready office space available. 

• Traffic Counts on 80th Avenue are 21,000 VPD.

• Positioned strategically near high density 
residential and industrial/office parks.

DEMOGRAPHICS

POPULATION HOUSEHOLDS
AVG HH
INCOME

1 Mile 8,427 3,001 $122,396

3 Mile 79,601 30,511 $103,266

5 Mile 190,112 71,948 $107,007

AREA ATTRACTIONS

Whitewater Canyon Water Park & Recreation Center

Tinley Park Convention Center, First Midwest Bank Amphitheatre.

http://www.edgemarkllc.com
mailto:msmetana@edgemarkllc.com
mailto:vpavlovic@edgemarkllc.com


The information contained herein has either been given to us by the owner of the property or obtained from sources that we deem reliable.  We have no reason to doubt its accuracy but we do not guarantee it.

FOR MORE 
INFORMATION 

CONTACT:

The Junction 
Tinley Park, Illinois

Matt Smetana
630.572.5632
msmetana@edgemarkllc.com

Ves Pavlovic
630.572.5607
vpavlovic@edgemarkllc.com

SPACE SQ FT TENANT SPACE SQ FT TENANT

17823 3,325 LEASE OUT 17849 884 Go Travel

17825 6,008 Anytime Fitness 17851 1,390 AVAILABLE

17833 1,569 AVAILABLE 17853 1,818 Cambridge Dental Care

17835 1,200 Array of Design Salon 17855 2,013 Chen’s Chinese Restaurant

17837 4,660 Athletico Sports Medicine 17859 3,443 AVAILABLE

17845 3,009 DS Services Total GLA 29,319 Sq Ft

mailto:msmetana@edgemarkllc.com
mailto:vpavlovic@edgemarkllc.com






























































 

 
 
 
Date:  February 21, 2019 
 
To:   Plan Commission 
 
From:  Kimberly Clarke 
  Planning Manager 
 
Subject:  Short Term Rental  

 
 
At the February 7, 2019 Plan Commission meeting, staff presented a workshop item discussing 
short-term rentals and how they can be regulated. Staff was requested by the Commissioners to 
provide the approach other communities in the region have taken to regulating (or not regulating) 
short-term rentals. Such research had already been conducted for the Community Development 
Committee, and the summery provided to the Committee has been attached to this staff report 
and updated. As stated by staff, there is no clear regulatory response to short-term rental. Staff 
has found professional research on best practices, which has guided staff in their 
recommendation to regulate short-term rental. 
 
One open item discussed at the workshop was requiring a distance requirement from one STR 
from another. Staff is still vetting a potential distance requirement and discussing this regulation 
with our attorneys.  
 
Lastly, staff is discussing internally how regulating STRs will work in the Legacy District because the 
districts are not as straightforward as those listed in the Zoning Code. 
 
For these reasons, staff requests that the public hearing is continued to the March 7, 2019 meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   

Memo 



 

 
Summary of Communities 

Short-Term Rental 
 
 
 

Lincolnwood Short-term rental properties. No property may be 
used more than once per calendar year as a short-
term rental property. (Adopted 2016) 

Lockport Does not regulate Short Term Rental 
New Lenox Does not regulate Short Term Rental 
Frankfort Does not regulate Short Term Rental 
Mokena Does not regulate Short Term Rental 
Oak Park Yes, agreement with Airbnb; 4% tax of the gross 

receipts 
Schaumburg Yes 8% tax of the gross rental receipts 
Naperville Yes 5.50% tax 
Rockford Yes 5% tax 
Joliet NO 
Evanston Yes, “Vacation Rental Ordinance” 
Oak Lawn Yes, license required 
Chicago Yes, license and annual fee. Limits number of units 

to be rented on short-term basis in multi-family 
buildings. Currently under court review 

Morton Grove No-looking into the process 
Arlington Heights No-no need 
Des Plaines No- legal department is reviewing potential 

regulations 
Glenview No-enforcement is complaint driven 
Mt. Prospect No, currently working on ordinance to prohibit 
Rosemont No, looking into the process 
Skokie No, looking into amending the zoning ordinance 

 
 


	01 2-21-2018 Plan Commission Agenda
	02 PC Minutes 20190207 - Draft
	03 CTF Illinois - PC Staff Report 20190221 Final
	04 CTF IL Submittals Only
	05 2013 Survey
	06 2009 Proposed Landscap Plan
	07 2009 Proposed Landscap Details
	08 Anytime Fitness SU Staff Report 20190221 Final
	09 Finding of Facts Special Use
	10 Survey MarkeD
	11 Anytime Floor Plan
	Sheets
	DD - Compliance Drawing


	12 Any Time Fitness_Parking Study
	13 Anytime Fitness Brochure 1
	14 Anytime Fitness Brochure 2
	15  Memo - Short Term Rental pubic hearing continued



